» o

|
» CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Y,

Notice of meeting of

Decision Session - Cabinet Member for City Strategy

To: Councillor Merrett (Cabinet Member)
Date: Tuesday, 27 September 2011
Time: 4.30 pm
Venue: The Guildhall, York
AGENDA

Notice to Members — Calling In

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item on
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by:

10.00 am on Monday 26 September 2011 if an item is called in
before a decision is taken, or

4.00pm on Thursday 29 September 2011 if an item is called in after
a decision has been taken.

Iltems called in will be considered by the Scrutiny Management
Committee.

Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on Friday 23
September 2011.

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this
agenda.

www.york.gov.uk



Minutes (Pages 3 - 12)
To approve and sign the minutes of the last City Strategy
Decision Session held on 26 July 2011.

Public Participation - Decision Session

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have
registered their wish to speak at the meeting can do so. The
deadline for registering is 5:00pm on Monday 26 September
2011.

Members of the public may speak on:

e An item on the agenda,

e an issue within the Cabinet Member’s remit,

e an item that has been published on the Information Log for
the current session. Information reports are listed at the
end of the agenda.

Please note that no items have been published on the
Information Log since the last Decision Session.

Water End/Clifton Green Junction: Options for
Reinstating a Separate Left Turn Traffic Lane on the
Water End Approach (Pages 13 - 58)

This report discusses the possible reinstatement of two traffic
lanes on the Water End approach to the Clifton Green signals, as
were in place before the cycling facilities were introduced. The
physical constraints of the site are outlined and various options
for reinstating a dedicated left turn traffic lane are developed and
discussed. Since most options involve the removal of the existing
on-road cycle lane, the report also includes ideas and proposals
for alternative ways of facilitating cyclist movements between
Water End and Water Lane. The report also includes some other
ideas for altering the way the Clifton Green signals operate, with a
view to increasing capacity and reducing traffic delays.

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.



Democracy Officer:

Name: Jill Pickering
Contact Details:
e Telephone — (01904) 552061
e Email —jill.pickering@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:
e Registering to speak

Written Representations

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports
ontact details are set out above

OO e o o




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Annex

About City of York Council Meetings

Would you like to speak at this meeting?
If you would, you will need to:

e register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and
contact details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no
later than 5.00 pm on the last working day before the meeting;

e ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of
business on the agenda or an issue which the committee has
power to consider (speak to the Democracy Officer for advice
on this);

e find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy
Officer.

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s
website or from Democratic Services by telephoning York
(01904) 551088

Further information about what’s being discussed at this
meeting

All the reports which Members will be considering are available for
viewing online on the Council’'s website. Alternatively, copies of
individual reports or the full agenda are available from Democratic
Services. Contact the Democracy Officer whose name and contact
details are given on the agenda for the meeting. Please note a
small charge may be made for full copies of the agenda
requested to cover administration costs.

Access Arrangements

We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.
The meeting will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue
with an induction hearing loop. We can provide the agenda or
reports in large print, electronically (computer disk or by email), in
Braille or on audio tape. Some formats will take longer than others
so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours for
Braille or audio tape).

If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-
by or a sign language interpreter then please let us know. Contact
the Democracy Officer whose name and contact details are given
on the order of business for the meeting.

Every effort will also be made to make information available in
another language, either by providing translated information or an



Page 2

interpreter providing sufficient advance notice is given. Telephone
York (01904) 551550 for this service.

T TOL R ST (ATF ST ZH ST G (F SRS T HANF TG T GRAT (60 FI A, F S FIFT
T T W T (R T O] S (RIS AR F 4 T | BRI (01904) 551 550 |

Yeteri kadar 6nceden haber verilmesi kosuluyla, bilgilerin teriimesini hazirlatmalk ya da
bir tercitman bulmak icin mmkiin olan hergey yapilacaktr. Tel: (01904) 551 550

HFE DR EFEE AR SIN - EE L RIRLIRITEMA BN T e 2R
FREEEARTS. A (01904) 551 550,

(01904) 551 550u)df-iu/ff@gd/i,)@f}(g.L#”r?ﬁq.JL« Sl e oh ot

Informacja mozie by¢ dostepna w ttumaczeniu, jesli dostaniemy zapotrzebowanie z
wystarczajacym wyprzedzeniem. Tel: (01904) 551 550

Holding the Cabinet to Account

The maijority of councillors are not appointed to the Cabinet (39 out
of 47). Any 3 non-Cabinet councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of
business from a published Cabinet (or Cabinet Member Decision
Session) agenda. The Cabinet will still discuss the ‘called in’
business on the published date and will set out its views for
consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny Management
Committee (SMC). That SMC meeting will then make its
recommendations to the next scheduled Cabinet meeting in the
following week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will
be made.

Scrutiny Committees
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees
appointed by the Council is to:
e Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services;
e Review existing policies and assist in the development of new
ones, as necessary; and
¢ Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans

Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?
e Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the
committees to which they are appointed by the Council;
¢ Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and
reports for the committees which they report to;
e Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.



Page 3 Agenda ltem 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes

MEETING DECISION SESSION - CABINET MEMBER
FOR CITY STRATEGY

DATE 26 JULY 2011

PRESENT COUNCILLOR MERRETT (CABINET
MEMBER)

IN ATTENDANCE COUNCILLORS BARNES, CUNNINGHAM-

CROSS, D'AGORNE, LEVENE, WARTERS
AND WATT

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

At this point in the meeting Members present were invited to
declare any personal or prejudicial interests they might have in
the business on the agenda.

Councillor Merrett declared a personal non prejudicial interest in
relation to Agenda item 5 (City Strategy Capital Programme —
2011/12 Consolidated Report) in so far as it referred to cycling
issues as a member of the York Cycle Campaign and Honorary
Member of the CTC.

MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the last Decision Session
— Cabinet Member for City Strategy, held on
28 June 2011 be approved and signed by the
Cabinet Member as a correct record.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/OTHER SPEAKERS

It was reported that there had been 5 registrations to speak at
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.
The Cabinet Member also granted 6 requests to speak from
Council members.

i) Evening and Sunday Bus Services to Rawcliffe and
Skelton- Matter within the remit of the Cabinet Member

A Rawcliffe resident made representations in respect of the
public transport situation in the Skelton, Rawcliffe and Clifton



Page 4

Without Ward. She expressed concerns regarding the lack of
consultation in respect of the contract for bus services and to
the reduction in services particularly on Sundays which was
impacting on local resident’s ability to participate in the life of the
city.

Representations were also received on behalf of local residents
from Councillor Cunningham-Cross in relation to the changes to
bus routes in the Skelton, Rawcliffe and Clifton Without Ward.
She pointed out that this had resulted in reductions in service
and a 2 hourly service at weekends which was affecting
residents attending doctor’s surgeries etc. The alternative routes
were causing confusion and she requested the Cabinet Member
to undertake negotiations with the operators to find a solution.

Clir Watt also spoke on behalf of residents of the Skelton,
Rawcliffe and Clifton Without Ward to draw attention to the
significant concerns of local residents at the changes to their
bus services. He referred to a petition signed by 140 local
residents objecting to the reduced services. Concerns had been
raised at the revised routes and with the reliability of the new
service and he requested a meeting to consider revisions to the
route and frequency of the evening and Sunday services.

In reply to the speakers comments, the Cabinet Member pointed
out that the decision to tender bus services had been taken prior
to the election. He confirmed that the tenders had now been
returned making it more difficult to undertake any major
revisions at this stage. However he had asked Officers to
examine possible enhancements to the services and confirmed
that it may be possible to improve the Friday and Saturday
evening services and Sunday service in response to residents
concerns. He had also requested Officers to ensure that they
worked with the bus operators to maximise publicity of the
service. He confirmed that resident’'s comments in relation to the
new service would be collated and bus usage monitored.

i)  University Related Parking in Nearby Residential Areas

A representative of the Badger Hill Resident's Community
Group, referred to the lack of consultation and to the need to
take this opportunity to assist residents with the parking
problems being encountered, at no cost to the Council. He
referred to the flawed measurement of parking levels and to the



Page 5

invalid and unreliable results. He pointed out that the only
feasible strategy was for the restrictions to cover the whole of
Zone 9 to prevent the problem moving further into Badger Hill
and to provide full consultation on any scheme.

A local resident confirmed that he had lived in the area for a
number of years and if sufficient parking had been provided on
campus this problem would not exist. He felt that the main issue
related to the charges levied for onsite parking. He further
stated that the ‘no waiting at any time’ proposed adjacent to his
property would have a detrimental affect on his household and
he requested the Cabinet Member to consider the needs of local
residents.

Representations were also received from a resident of Field
Lane who confirmed support for the recommendations insofar
as they related to Field Lane. However she expressed concern
at the short hours of operation which would not prove effective
as vehicles often arrived prior to 8.00am. She stated that to be
effective the restrictions should apply from 8.00am to 6.00pm.
She went onto question the practicality of the road closure at the
Badger Wood Walk end of the Field Lane service road and its
affects on the manoeuvring of large vehicles.

Councillor Warter expressed concerns at the proposal which he
felt could move the parking problem from Badger Hill to the
adjacent Ward. He referred to the majority of responses to
residents comments set out at Annex E3 of the report which he
felt were unhelpful. The parking levels at the University were he
considered inadequate and he requested the Cabinet Member
to request Officers to review the level of parking within the
campus. Request the University to provide staff and student
parking at a cost based on usage and to continue consultation
with the University, resident groups, and Ward Members. Any
parking zone should use as little signage as possible to avoid
street clutter.

Councillor Levene, as Ward Member for one of the affected
streets, welcomed the recommendation but he also confirmed
his concerns regarding the hours of operation. He felt that it was
important to liaise with the Parish Council and community
groups to find a solution and to discourage car use with the
improvement of transport links and satellite parking.



Page 6

i) City Strategy Capital Programme — 2011/12 Consolidated
Report

A local resident spoke in a personal capacity on issues within
the remit of the Cabinet Member and relating to the Local
Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF). He welcomed the
acceptance of the LSTF bid for bus measures however he felt
that it was also essential to use the funding to gain uniform
quality provision in provision of bus information at stops, shops,
Post Office’s and community venues and to provide route
promotion. He stated that action was required to raise the levels
of bus use to nearer the regional average, and allow users to
influence the services that operators provided.

Councillor D’Agorne spoke in relation to the Fishergate Gyratory
Multi-Modal Scheme. He expressed concerns at any delay
which would affect the final phase of the improvements
particularly at the blind corner at the junction of Fawcett
Street/Paragon Street. With the reopening of the Barbican
increased pedestrian numbers were using this junction making it
essential to improve vehicle priority and pedestrian safety.

iv) 20mph Speed Limit Pilot Areas

Councillor Warters also spoke on behalf of Murton Parish
Council in support of the proposal to use Murton as a 20mph
speed limit pilot for villages. He requested that consideration
should be given to additional traffic reduction to prevent the
village being used as a shortcut. He therefore requested further
investigation of measures to address additional traffic passing
through the village, the inclusion of a reasonable sum of money
for engineering works for road narrowing and a build out
adjacent to the church. He also asked Officers to have regard to
the rural nature of the village in relation to signage.

UNIVERSITY RELATED PARKING IN NEARBY
RESIDENTIAL AREAS

Consideration was given to a report which asked the Cabinet
Member to agree a strategy for dealing with the increased
parking issues that were arising in the residential areas in the
vicinity of the University of York as its planned programme of
expansion was developed.



Page 7

The report confirmed that parking issues had been raised at the
public enquiry into the Heslington East Campus. At that time the
Planning Inspector had referred to the possible implementation
of a residents parking scheme and ‘that the costs of that
scheme would be met by the University and that local residents
would not be charged for permits’.

Officers reported receipt of 31 late representations generally not
favouring any of the suggested options together with a letter in
support of the recommendation from a resident of Low Mill
Close. He went onto refer to the following amendments to the
report:

e Paragraph 38 B should refer to Options 2B and F and to
the restricted parking zone being experimental for a
period of up to 18 months.

The following options were put forward for consideration:

A. Delegate authority to officers to formally propose
restrictions in line with those used elsewhere in the
estate (Option 1 B)

B. Approve a Restricted Parking Zone using daytime
parking restrictions between 10am and 2pm, Monday to
Friday, all year round (Options 2 B and F).

C. Take no action at present in the vicinity of the shops
(Option 3B), but review if long term University related
parking becomes a problem.

D. Approve a “new style” residents parking scheme for Cul-
de-sacs with the option of implementing road closures
where desirable. Conditions to be: one permit per
property, no visitor permits, restrictions in force 10am to
2pm Monday to Friday all year round and that the zone
be expanded to include other streets in the badger Hill
area if necessary (Option 4 C and C1, 2 3 & 4).

E. Approve the use of a rural clearway on Field Lane
(Option 5 B).

The Cabinet Member confirmed that, on the basis of the
resident’s poll, the majority were broadly supportive of the
recommendation. However he accepted their comments and
confirmed he would support an increase in the restricted hours
to cover the working day. It was pointed out that this was not the



Page 8

final decision and that monitoring would be undertaken and that
he was willing to respond to any change in circumstances that
subsequently arose in the area.

Following further discussion it was

RESOLVED: That in order to develop a robust
parking strategy aimed at alleviating the
growing parking issues affecting those
living in the residential areas close to the
University the Cabinet Member agrees
to:

i) The adoption of the following strategy
when reviewing or considering new
emerging parking issues:

e Delegate authority to officers to
formally propose restrictions in
line with those used elsewhere
in the estate.

e Approve a Restricted Parking
Zone for an experimental period
of up to 18 months, using
daytime parking restrictions
between 8am and 6pm,
Monday to Friday, all vyear
round.

e Take no action at present in the
vicinity of the shops, but review
if long term University related
parking becomes a problem.

e Approve a “new style” residents
parking scheme for Cul-de-
sacs, for an experimental period
of up to 18 months, with the
option of implementing road
closures  where desirable.
Conditions to be: one permit per
property, no visitor permits,
restrictions in force 8am to 6pm
Monday to Friday all year round
and that the zone be expanded
to include other streets in the
Badger Hill area if necessary.



10.

Page 9

e Approve the use of a rural
clearway on Field Lane.

i) The introduction of an experimental
Traffic Regulation Order as detailed in
paragraph 39 of the report.

iii) Continue close liaison with the
University representatives. "

REASON: To reduce non-residential parking in the
area, to ensure parking doesn'’t transfer
to the main road network and to provide
a more rapid response to issues that
escalate quickly due to the University
development.

Action Required
1. Undertake the introduction of the experimental
TRO and continue liaison with University. AB

CITY STRATEGY CAPITAL PROGRAMME - 2011/12
CONSOLIDATED REPORT

The Cabinet Member considered a report which identified the
proposed changes to the 2011/12 City Strategy Capital
Programme to take account of carryover funding from 2010/11,
and to include additional funding from the Local Sustainable
Transport Fund and other sources.

Details of the current and proposed budgets together with
proposed changes and scheme progress reports were detailed
in Annexes 1 and 2 of the report. It was reported that the total
value of the City Strategy Planning and Transport Capital
Programme for 2011/12 would be £3,611k including
overprogramming, with the budget increasing to £3,210k with
the funding as set out in the table at page 51 of the report.

Officers confirmed that the Fishergate scheme continued to be
part of the programme and that they would take note of the
speakers comments.

The Cabinet Member confirmed his willingness to discuss short
term measures to move the Fishergate Scheme forward. He



11.

Page 10

also referred to changes in priorities which would be brought to
future meetings.

RESOLVED: That the Cabinet Member agrees to:

i) Approve the carryover schemes and
adjustments set out in Annexes 1 and 2
of the report. "

i) Approve the increase to the 2011/12 City
Strategy capital budget, subject to the
approval of the Cabinet. *

REASON: To enable the effective management and
monitoring of the council’s capital programme.

Action Required
1. Approve the variations and refer to Cabinet. TC

20MPH SPEED LIMIT PILOT AREA

Consideration was given to a report which identified a proposal
to progress the creation of an extended area of 20mph speed
limits in the South Bank area to the south west of the city centre
as part of the development of a citywide 20mph speed limit

policy.

The report also considered the possibility of using Murton as a
20mph speed limit pilot for villages, following receipt of a well
supported petition calling for a 20mph speed limit in the village.

Officers confirmed that they were working on proposals for a city
wide 20mph speed limit for development with key stakeholders.
It was also confirmed that they would work with Murton Parish
Council to balance the needs of the rural area with the
introduction of the speed limit.

The Cabinet Member thanked Officers for their work on
progressing these schemes. He confirmed that further work was
required on the method of dealing with distributor roads whilst
progressing a 20mph city wide scheme and the need for a
campaign to gain the hearts and minds of residents.



Page 11

RESOLVED: That the Cabinet Member approves the
progression of the South Bank and Murton
areas as pilots to assist in the development of
the new 20mph speed limit policy. *

REASON: To ensure that 20mph speed limits are
implemented in the city in the most inclusive,
coordinated and appropriate way.

Action Required
1. Proceed with the implementation of the South
Bank and Murton schemes. TH

CLLR D MERRETT, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 5.40 pm].



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Agenda ltem 4

YORK

;. -
“Z=N CITY OF
S COUNCIL

Decision Session — Cabinet Member for City 27 September 2011
Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Water End/Clifton Green Junction: Options for Reinstating a
Separate Left Turn Traffic Lane on the Water End Approach.

Summary

1. This report discusses the possible reinstatement of two traffic
lanes on the Water End approach to the Clifton Green signals, as
were in place before the cycling facilities were introduced. The
physical constraints of the site are outlined and various options for
reinstating a dedicated left turn traffic lane are developed and
discussed. Since most options involve the removal of the existing
on-road cycle lane, the report also includes ideas and proposals
for alternative ways of facilitating cyclist movements between
Water End and Water Lane. The report also includes some other
ideas for altering the way the Clifton Green signals operate, with a
view to increasing capacity and reducing traffic delays.

Recommendation
2. The Cabinet Member is recommended:

To note the contents of the report and decide if one of the options
for reinstating two traffic lanes should be progressed or not, and if
any of the additional ways of improving the operation of the traffic
signals should be taken forward.

Reason: To balance various advantages and disadvantages
linked to the options, with a view to achieving the best overall
solution.

Background

3. The plan in Annex A shows the original layout, i.e. before the
current scheme was implemented. Under this layout cyclists often
had difficulty in riding past the queue of vehicles approaching the



Page 14

Cliffton Green traffic signals, particularly at the ‘pinch point’
adjacent to property number 17 Clifton Green, and regularly
resorted to riding along the narrow footway to bypass vehicles in
order to reach the advanced stop line (ASL). In addition, the very
narrow central cycle feeder lane at 0.7 metres wide running in-
between the adjacent traffic lanes, was neither wide enough nor
long enough to provide any practical advantage for cyclists. The
lane widths were sub-standard at around 2.4m, and just sufficient
to accommodate cars and small vans. Access to the left turn lane
was also often restricted by queuing back to the pinch point, but on
average around 11 cars per cycle would be able to benefit from the
left turn filter lane (7 on the filter and 4 on the full green), thereby
increasing the overall capacity of the junction.

The plan in Annex B shows the current layout, which was
implemented during the early part of 2009. The removal of the left
turn traffic lane has enabled a 1.5m cycle lane to be provided all
the way up to the ASL at the signals, alongside a single traffic lane
that varies in width between 3.0m to 3.9m. This generally works
well for cyclists, although it has been observed that a small
number of motorists choose to go into the cycle lane and use it as
a left turn traffic lane. Overall the scheme has been well received
by cyclists, and numbers cycling along this route have increased
significantly, effectively doubling in number from about 80 per hour
in the AM peak before the improvements were implemented and
around 160 per hour at the present time. For motorists, it was
always acknowledged that there would be some increased delays
and queue lengths due to the removal of the left turn lane, and it
was expected that this would result in some wider traffic re-
distribution, plus some choosing to cycle instead.

Since implementation, there have been complaints about
increased traffic congestion on Water End as a result of losing the
dedicated left turn traffic lane. The removal of the left turn
effectively reduced the capacity of the Water End approach by 11
vehicles each change of the lights (30 changes per hour in the AM
peak). This increased queue lengths and the time taken for traffic
in the queue to discharge through the lights. Prior to the scheme a
vehicle joining the back of the queue on Clifton Bridge (500m
back) would take on average 6 minutes to clear the lights at Clifton
Green, post scheme it takes over 10 minutes. For Westminster
Road (at 350m) pre-scheme took on average 3.9 minutes or two
changes of the lights, this increases to 7.1 minutes or four changes
of the lights post scheme.



Page 15

The strongest adverse reaction to the scheme has come from
residents of the Westminster Road/ The Avenue area, which is
now experiencing more through traffic than it did before (around
750 vehicles per day before, compared to about 1500 now).
However, this is not considered to be particularly high when
compared to other streets that provide alternatives to staying on
the main roads. In response, local councillors instigated a
Councillor Call for Action, and a Task Group was subsequently set
up to conduct a review of the scheme.

The Task Group reported its findings and recommendations to the
council's Executive on 6™ July 2010, where the following
resolutions were made:

. “That Officers be requested, in line with the recommendations
of the Task Group, to bring forward for public consultation
proposals which would see a left turn general traffic lane
provided at the Water End junction, on the basis that such a
proposal would also retain a discrete cycle lane or path. It
is recognised that such a project could have significant
financial, conservation and road safety implications, all of which
would have to be highlighted in any Officer report before a final
decision on implementation could be made”.

« “That Officers be instructed to undertake, on a trial basis, the
installation of chicanes on Westminster Road, with a view to
establishing what effect they have on vehicle volumes and
speeds”.

In response, Officers developed the layout shown in Annex C as
the best that could be achieved within the existing Highway
boundary, and this was considered at the Executive Member for
City Strategy Decision Session on 7" December 2010. The officer
report highlighted that all the lane widths would be sub-standard,
and the layout would require the removal of the strip of cobbles at
the side of the footway, and a significant cutting back of the large
mature hedges forming the front boundary of the adjacent houses
to provide some additional carriageway space (see Photo 1).

In addition, the report noted that a road safety audit of the proposal
had identified several areas of concern. It was also explained that
this layout would not fully restore the left turn lane to its former
length, but would still improve the traffic flow capacity of the
junction, and would be especially advantageous in the morning



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 16

peak period when there is a higher proportion of drivers making the
left turn.

The report also noted that consultation with interested parties had
confirmed many of the known concerns over the existing scheme,
particularly relating to traffic problems. However, it was highlighted
that consultation had also generated many comments in support of
retaining the existing layout, which included representations from
cycling orgaisations, the Police, and the Ambulance Service.

Weighing everything up, Officers concluded - “The implementation
of the proposed scheme would bring about a small improvement to
traffic flow at the junction, and would be welcomed by many
people. However, it would not fully restore the previous situation,
which could lead to some dissatisfaction with the outcome.
Furthermore, many people are opposed to changing the current
layout, and significant concerns have been raised, particularly in
relation to the safety of cyclists and pedestrians. Officers consider
that these safety matters cannot be resolved by amending the
proposed scheme, and therefore on safety grounds retaining the
existing layout is preferred.”

The decision made the Executive Member on 7" December 2010
was to retain the current layout. At this meeting the proposed
chicane trail in Westminster Road was also abandoned due to a
lack of support from local residents (for this reason, the report does
not discuss further possible measures for Westminster Road and
The Avenue).

This decision was subsequently called in, resulting in a resolution
by The Executive (Calling In) on 21 December 2010 requesting
that Officers prepare a report for consideration at a future Decision
Session on the consequences of reinstating the left turn lane,
without a cycle lane, at the Water End/Clifton Green junction.

Whilst it would be quite simple to remove the existing cycle lane
markings and restore a left turn traffic lane, it would not be
straightforward to fully return the road layout to its original form.
This is because cyclists coming from Clifton Bridge now approach
the junction on an off-road path and currently re-join the
carriageway via the build-out at the pinch point near the start of the
Green. Furthermore, if this was to be removed, some alternative
means of rejoining cyclists to the road would be required.
Therefore, the next section of this report focuses on the design
implications of options for reinstating a left turn lane in accordance



15.

16.

17.

Page 17

with the resolution. This is followed by an exploration of alternative
ways of facilitating cyclist movements between Water End and
Water Lane, plus some other ideas for altering the operation of the
traffic signals to improve traffic flow.

Options for Reinstating a Left Turn Lane without a Cycle Lane

Option One — Retaining the cycle track build-out and splitter
island

General Description: This option (see Annex D) restores the
original traffic lane layout, but also retains the cycle track build-out,
which addresses the problems cyclists used to face at the pinch-
point. The proposal includes a short length of advisory cycle lane
beyond the end of the cycle track ramp to give cyclists a degree of
protection as they rejoin the carriageway (for at least ten metres
beyond the cycle track ramp). Annex D shows the lane widths that
are achievable, although it should be noted that both the left turn
and right turn lanes approaching the junction would be sub-
standard, which would create queues of tightly packed traffic and
specific difficulties in accommodating larger vehicles that would be
likely to encroach into other traffic lanes.

It should be noted that in the original layout, before the changes
were implemented, that the left turn lane was only marked out on
the carriageway surface for a distance of approximately 22 metres
from the advance stop line, although traffic was sometimes able to
queue in two lanes as far back as the pinch-point and perhaps on
occasion slightly beyond. However, although the road markings
would replicate the original layout, this option would also result in a
shorter distance being available for left turners than was available
previously (given the presence of the cycle track build-out), but as
discussed below, would still produce reasonable benefits for traffic
flow.

Advantages:

e The main advantage of this proposal is that the traffic capacity
of the junction would be increased. Between 3 and 4 vehicles
would be able to make use of the filter each change of the
lights with an additional 2 during the full green. This option
restores approximately 55% of the capacity of the left turn
filter lane. It would take on average 7 minutes to clear the
lights from a vehicle joining the back of the queue on Clifton
Bridge, and 5.4 minutes from Westminster Road.



18.

Page 18

This layout would still enable cyclists to get reasonably close
to the junction via the off-road facilities, and would be
protected from traffic at the pinch-point, which was a particular
problem for cyclists in the original layout (shown in Annex A).

Because there would be no work required to remove the cycle
track build-out, the risk of any damage to the existing water
main (which was fractured during the construction of the
current scheme and resulted in significant local flooding)
would be significantly reduced.

The short central cycle feeder lane in the original layout
served very little practical purpose, as mentioned in paragraph
3 above, and could therefore be omitted. This would allow the
traffic lanes to be widened slightly, closer to the junction.

Retaining the splitter island would provide a benefit to
pedestrians crossing the Water End junction mouth for
accessing Clifton Green (where there is a gap in the boundary
fencing). The splitter island also provides protection for
cyclists waiting in the ASL box from vehicles turning right into
Water End from Shipton Road.

Disadvantages:

After rejoining the carriageway, cyclists would face significant
difficulties and safety issues in moving forward from the build-out
to access the ASL. These difficulties would vary depending upon
the status of the signals ahead, as discussed below:

Whilst the signals are at full red, traffic queues will be
building up or will have already built up. Under these
circumstances, cyclists could be blocked by traffic queuing in
the left turn lane, or face danger from vehicles moving across
their path to reach the left turn lane. In addition, if two traffic
lanes have formed beyond any rejoining cyclists, then reaching
the ASL would be extremely difficult, either on the nearside of
vehicles in the left turn lane, or through the middle of the two
lanes of queuing traffic.

When the left turn filter is on cyclists would be able to follow
any clearing vehicles in the left turn lane, and either turn left
with the traffic, or enter the ASL before the right turn lane gets a
green signal. However, the left turn filter signal would only be
on for approximately 15 seconds before the full green signal for



19.

20.

Page 19

Water End, which means that any benefits under this
circumstance are infrequent and short lived.

e When there is a full green signal traffic will be flowing in the
right turn lane with some traffic peeling off to enter the left turn
lane. During this phase, cyclists rejoining the carriageway
would need to avoid any vehicles that may want to turn across
them to access the left turn lane, with the potential for
dangerous vehicle conflicts. The majority of cyclists would also
be attempting to seek a suitable gap in the traffic flow to move
across into the right turn lane. This situation is considered to be
the most difficult and hazardous for cyclists.

e The limited length of the left turn lane means that the entry to
the lane is quite quickly blocked, so that the utilisation of the
filter arrow is quite low at only 3 or 4 vehicles for each change
of the lights. When the left filter comes on, these vehicles will
clear in around 6 to 8 seconds, but there will be other drivers in
the main traffic queue wanting to turn left who will see the left
filter signal showing, but will be unable to progress forward to
use it. This is likely to lead to some frustration and negative
reaction to the layout. The Water End approach still has
significantly less capacity than pre-scheme. It would require an
additional 10 to 15 seconds of extra green time to restore this.
Whilst indications are that some of this green is available in off-
peak periods, it is not available during the peaks without
causing severe adverse effect on other legs of the junction.

Estimated Costs: The costs involved in making the amendments
to provide this layout would be relatively cheap, probably
somewhere in the region of £10 to £12k. This includes all of the
road marking changes and alterations required to amend the traffic
signal equipment, but mainly to plane out the existing advisory
cycle lane and reinstate a patch to restore the carriageway
surface. Also, because no changes would be required in relation to
the cycle track build-out, the risk of damaging the water main
would be reduced.

Option Two - Retaining the cycle track build-out, but
removing the splitter island

General Description: A variation on the Option One approach
could see a retention of the cycle track build-out, whilst at the
same time removing the splitter island at the junction mouth to



21.

22,

23.

Page 20

provide additional width for the two approach traffic lanes. This
option is shown in Annex E.

Advantages: This option has all the advantages discussed
previously in Option One above, although by removing the existing
splitter island at the junction mouth, the available width left for
vehicles could be increased slightly, thereby providing more room
for all road users. Annex E shows the widths that would be
achievable under these circumstances. Some further improvement
in traffic flow is likely as a result of removing the splitter island,
because with more space available, this makes both left and right
turns easier to execute. However, the benefits would be small with
less than one additional vehicle throughput every other change of
the lights, or less than 15 vehicles/hour.

Disadvantages:

e Both the left turn and right turn lanes approaching the junction
would still be sub-standard.

e Cyclists would still experience significant difficulties merging
with motor traffic beyond this point, as previously discussed
above in Option One.

e The removal of the splitter island would remove the physical
protection currently given to cyclists waiting in the ASL whilst
traffic turns right into Water End. The most significant risk
would be from the right turning Park & Ride buses, but given
their ability to negotiate the right turn manoeuvre without
difficulty when the splitter island is in place, the risk of larger
vehicles overrunning the ASL should be minimal. In addition,
the edge of the ASL could be narrowed slightly in order to
mitigate against this risk.

e On site observations show that pedestrians crossing here to
access the opening to use Clifton Green use the splitter island
to cross Water End in two stages (between traffic signal
phases), often waiting in the ‘shadow’ of the island. If the
splitter island were to be removed, this would make it very
difficult for pedestrians to cross Water End at the junction.

Estimated Costs: Removing the splitter island would add
approximately £5k to Option One, giving an estimated scheme cost
in the region of £15 to £17k, subject to the water main not being
damaged.



24,

25.

26.

Page 21

Option Three — Removing the cycle track build-out, but
retaining the splitter island

General Description: A road layout very close to the original
could be created by removing the cycle track build-out and
returning cyclists to the carriageway earlier, where the road is
wider, as shown in Annex F and Photo 2. This would practically
restore the former left turn lane provision for motorists, but would
also recreate all the former problems for cyclists that existed
previously.

Advantages: Motor traffic approaching the junction would be able
to form into two lanes earlier than the previously discussed
options, given that more carriageway space would be available if
the cycle track build-out was removed. This would consequently
improve the flow of traffic through the junction. Between 5 and 6
vehicles would be able to make use of the filter each change of the
lights with an additional 3 during the full green. This option restores
80% to 90% of the capacity of the left turn filter lane compared to
the pre-scheme case. It would take on average 6.3 minutes to
clear the lights from a vehicle joining the back of the queue on
Clifton Bridge, and 4.4 minutes from Westminster Road. An
additional green time of 6 to 10 seconds would be required to bring
the capacity up to pre-scheme levels.

Disadvantages:

e |n particular, cyclists would face significant problems at the
pinch point (and just prior to it), where motorists seeking to
squeeze into the start of the left turn lane would be likely to
block their path.

e Cyclists could also face two queues of tightly packed traffic
beyond the pinch point (either stationary, or moving) and
experience associated problems in reaching the junction,
similar to those outlined above in paragraph 18.

e For these reasons, many cyclists are likely to continue off-road
by using the verge and/or footway and then drop back onto the
carriageway at or close to the ASL, as they did with the original
pre-scheme implementation layout (shown in Annex A). This
would place pedestrians in conflict with cyclists on the already
narrow footway, with the potential for either cyclists or
pedestrians to be forced across the cobbled area and into the



27.

28.

29.

Page 22

carriageway, potentially into the path of vehicles in the left turn
lane.

e The costs involved in removing the current cycle track build-out
could be high, given that there would be a significant risk of
damaging the very shallow water main that lies directly
underneath. Armed with this knowledge, the build-out would of
course be removed with great care, but it would be preferable
not to risk disturbing the water main again.

e The Water End approach still has slightly less capacity than
pre-scheme, although an additional 4 to 8 seconds of green
would fully restore this. Indications are that this green time is
available in off-peak and morning peak periods without causing
adverse effect to other legs of the junction, but not available
during the PM peak. The consequence being that it would not
be possible to fully restore levels of queuing and delays back to
pre-scheme levels.

Estimated Costs: Assuming that no damage was done to the
water main, the costs involved in making the necessary
amendments to provide this layout would be relatively cheap,
probably somewhere in the region of £20 to £25k. This would
include all of the road marking changes and alterations required to
amend the traffic signal equipment, but mainly to plane out the
existing advisory cycle lane and reinstate a patch to restore the
carriageway surface. However, the risk of damaging the water
main can not be ignored. If this was damaged again, then the costs
for repair could run into tens of thousands of pounds,
notwithstanding all the associated disruption that this would cause,
and also the potential for the council’s reputation to be damaged.

Option Four — Removing both the cycle track build-out and
the splitter island

General Description: A possible improvement on Option Three
could be created by removing the splitter island at the junction
mouth to provide additional width for the two approach traffic lanes,
as shown in Annex G.

Advantages: Motor traffic approaching the junction would be able
to form into two lanes earlier than the previously discussed
options, given that more carriageway space would be available if
the cycle track build-out was removed. This would consequently
improve the flow of traffic through the junction by a small amount.



30.

31.

32.

Page 23

Some further improvement in traffic flow is likely as a result of
removing the splitter island, because with more space available,
this makes both left and right turns easier to execute. However, the
benefits are small with less than one additional vehicle throughput
every other change of the lights (less than 15 vehicles/hour).

Disadvantages: The disadvantages for this option are similar to
those outlined above in Option Three, but in addition:

e The removal of the splitter island would remove the physical
protection currently given to cyclists waiting in the ASL whilst
traffic turns right into Water End. The most significant risk
would be from the right turning Park & Ride buses, but given
their ability to negotiate the right turn manoeuvre without
difficulty when the splitter island is in place, the risk of larger
vehicles overrunning the ASL should be minimal. In addition,
the edge of the ASL could be narrowed slightly in order to
mitigate against this risk.

e On site observations show that pedestrians crossing here to
access the opening to use Clifton Green use the splitter island
to cross Water End in two stages (between traffic signal
phases), often waiting in the ‘shadow’ of the island. If the
splitter island were to be removed, this would make it very
difficult for pedestrians to cross Water End at the junction.

Estimated Costs: Removing the splitter island would add
approximately £5k to Option Three, giving an estimated scheme
cost in the region of £25 to £30k, subject of course to the water
main not being damaged.

Further Options?

Variations on the four layouts set out above could be achieved by
removing the strip of cobbles at the edge of the footway. This
footway currently varies between approximately 1.35m and 1.5m in
width (not including the cobbles). Removing the cobbles would
provide an additional 0.6m of carriageway space, which would
enable slightly wider traffic lanes to be provided. This would ease
traffic flow a little further, but would not be sufficient to overcome
the fundamental problems cyclists would face, unless a dedicated
cycle lane could be accommodated. Therefore, amended versions
of the four options presented above have not been developed.



33.

34.

35.

Page 24

The idea of widening the road to enable a left turn traffic lane to be
restored whilst retaining some form of on-road cycle lane, was the
basis of the previous junction review, which took place in 2010. As
explained in paragraph 8 above, Officers developed the layout
shown in Annex C as the best that could be achieved. This offered
limited traffic flow improvement, had many associated safety
issues, and was consequently rejected at that time. However, it
does present a feasible alternative to the four options presented
above, which do not have a cycle lane. Therefore, a similar
assessment for comparison purposes is set out below. This
includes the layout shown in Annex C, plus a variation based on
retaining the splitter island. For consistency with the descriptions of
the four options without a cycle lane, the layout which retains the
splitter island is presented first.

Option Five - Road widening to create additional space to re-
introduce a left turn traffic lane plus the retention of an on-
road cycle facility, whilst retaining the splitter island.

General Description: This layout (see Annex H) is based on
removing the existing strip of cobbles running alongside the
footway, plus severely trimming back the boundary hedge to the
adjacent properties, to create additional road space for a central
cycle ‘feeder’ lane to be accommodated between separate left and
right turn traffic lanes. It also retains the existing splitter island.

Advantages:

e A continuous facility would be retained for cyclists all the way
from the cycle track to the ASL.

e Calculations show that the short left turn lane would improve the
traffic flow capacity of the junction, and would be especially
advantageous in the morning peak period when there is a
higher proportion of drivers making the left turn. On average, 2
vehicles would be able to make use of the filter lane, and a
further 2 vehicles during the full green. This would restore
approximately 40% of the capacity of the original filter lane.

e Retaining the cycle track build-out would protect cyclists from
traffic at the pinch-point, which was a particular problem for
cyclists in the original layout (shown in Annex A).



Page 25

e Because there would be no work required to remove the cycle
track build-out, the risk of any damage to the existing water
main (which was fractured during the construction of the current
scheme and resulted in significant local flooding) would be
significantly reduced.

e Retaining the splitter island would provide a benefit to
pedestrians crossing the Water End junction mouth for
accessing Clifton Green (where there is a gap in the boundary
fencing). The splitter island also provides protection for cyclists
waiting in the ASL box from vehicles turning right into Water
End from Shipton Road.

36. Disadvantages:

e Both the left turn and right turn traffic lanes approaching the
junction would be very sub-standard, and therefore cyclists are
still likely to experience significant difficulties reaching the ASL,
despite the provision of a continuous central cycle feeder lane.
The most significant risk to cyclists is the potential for conflict
with motor vehicles at the point where vehicles will have to cut
across the cycle lane to enter the left turn filter lane. In addition,
because of the narrow traffic lanes, there will be occasions
when vehicles queuing or moving directly adjacent to the cycle
lane may need to encroach into the cycle lane, thereby creating
further potential conflict with cyclists.

e The short length of the left turn lane means that entry would
quickly become blocked by vehicles queuing back in the main
traffic lane. When the left filter signal comes on, the vehicles in
the left turn lane (two on average) will clear in around 6 to 8
seconds, but there will be other drivers in the main traffic queue
wanting to turn left who will see the left filter signal showing, but
will be unable to progress forward to use it. This is likely to lead
to some frustration and negative reaction to the layout.

e Although this layout would restore around 40% of the capacity
of the original left turn traffic lane, it would require an additional
10 to 15 seconds of extra full green time to be allocated to the
Water End approach to fully restore the lost capacity. Whilst
indications are that some spare green time is available in off-
peak periods, it is not available during the peaks without
causing severe adverse effect on other legs of the junction.



Page 26

37. Estimated Costs: This option would involve removing the cobbles
to create additional carriageway width, which would not only
involve the provision of a full carriageway construction in the area
concerned, but would also require an area of carriageway re-
profiling to smooth out the road camber. A new kerb alignment
associated with these changes would also be required. In total, the
implementation costs are estimated to be approximately £30k to
£35k.

Option Six - Road widening to create additional space to re-
introduce a left turn traffic lane, plus the retention of an on-
road cycle facility, and removing the splitter island.

38. General Description: This layout (see Annex C) is also based on
the idea of removing the existing strip of cobbles running alongside
the footway, plus severely trimming back the boundary hedge to
the adjacent properties, to create additional road space. However,
this layout also removes the existing splitter island to provide
slightly more generous traffic lane widths either side of the central
cycle ‘feeder’ lane.

39. Advantages: The advantages for this option are similar to those
outlined above in Option Five, but in addition:

e By removing the existing splitter island at the junction mouth,
the available width left for vehicles could be increased slightly,
thereby providing more room for all road users. Annex C shows
the widths that would be achievable under these circumstances.
Some further improvement in traffic flow is likely as a result of
removing the splitter island, because with more space available,
this makes both left and right turns easier to execute. However,
the benefits would be small, with less than one additional
vehicle throughput every other change of the lights, or less than
15 vehicles/hour.

40. Disadvantages: The disadvantages for this option are similar to
those outlined above in Option Five, but in addition:

e The removal of the splitter island would remove the physical
protection currently given to cyclists waiting in the ASL whilst
traffic turns right into Water End. The most significant risk
would be from the right turning Park & Ride buses, but given
their ability to negotiate the right turn manoeuvre without
difficulty when the splitter island is in place, the risk of larger



41.

42.

Page 27

vehicles overrunning the ASL should be minimal. In addition,
the edge of the ASL could be narrowed slightly in order to
mitigate against this risk.

¢ |n addition, on site observations show that pedestrians crossing
here to access the opening to use Clifton Green will often use
the splitter island to cross Water End in two stages (between
traffic signal phases), normally waiting in the ‘shadow’ of the
island. If the splitter island were to be removed, this would make
it very difficult for pedestrians to cross Water End at the
junction.

Estimated Costs: This option is the most expensive of all the
options that have been considered, requiring all the works within
Option Five plus the removal of the splitter island. Therefore, in
total, the implementation costs are estimated to be approximately
£35k to £40k.

Road Safety Audit

Road Safety Audits have recently been undertaken on the
alternative layouts forming Options One to Four (i.e. Annexes D,
E, F, & G). A road safety audit of the central cycle lane layout
forming the basis of Options Five and Six (i.e. Annexes H and C)
was carried out in 2010 as part of the previous junction review. The
key safety concerns highlighted in the audits are summarised
below:

Options One to Four

e For all four options the removal of the existing on-road
advisory cycle lane would increase conflict between cyclists
and motor vehicles.

e For the options which retain the build-out (i.e. Options One and
Two) there would be conflict between cyclists leaving the cycle
track ramp and motor vehicles moving into the left turn traffic
lane.

e For the options which remove the build-out (i.e. Options Three
and Four) cyclists would be on-road for much longer, resulting
in increased exposure to motor traffic and potential conflicts,
especially where the carriageway narrows at the ‘pinch-point’.



43.

Page 28

For the options which retain the splitter island (i.e. Options One
and Three) the traffic lanes would be very narrow, which would
lead to conflict between vehicles, and between cyclists and
vehicles. Any proposal to create a short central cycle feeder
lane is not recommended, as it would be too narrow to
accommodate safe use by cyclists (it could also encourage left
turning cyclists to adopt a poor road position). In addition, the
very narrow traffic lanes could lead to increased cyclist usage
of the footway, thereby leading to conflicts between cyclists
and pedestrians.

For the options which remove the splitter island (i.e. Options
Two and Four) there would be reduced protection given to
cyclists from potential conflicts with right turning traffic,
especially buses and HGVs. In addition, this would remove the
assistance that the splitter island provides for pedestrians
crossing to and from The Green.

Options Five and Six

For both options:-

There would be conflicts between cyclists and left turning traffic
cutting across the central cycle lane.

Traffic would regularly be queuing across the central cycle lane,
resulting in obstruction and potential hazards for cyclists trying
to move forward.

Cyclists in the central lane would be moving between two
closely spaced lines of traffic within sub-standard width traffic
lanes, which is likely to lead to potential conflicts, especially if
larger vehicles are present. This problem would be worse under
Option Five due to the narrower traffic lanes.

There will be increased risks to pedestrians from passing traffic
due to the limited footway width and close proximity of the left
turning traffic without the existing safer buffer provided by the
strip of cobbles. This problem would be worse under Option
Five due to the narrower traffic lanes.

Some cyclists, especially those turning left, may choose to ride
on the footway in preference to rejoining the carriageway, which
would result in potential conflict with pedestrians and a risk from



44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

Page 29

passing traffic due to the limited footway width and close
proximity of the left turning traffic (exacerbated by the removal
of the existing strip of cobbles).

For just Option Six:-

e Option Six removes the splitter island, resulting in reduced
protection for cyclists from potential conflicts with right turning
traffic, especially buses and HGVs. In addition, this would
remove the assistance that the splitter island provides for
pedestrians crossing to and from The Green.

In summary, the safety auditors conclude that all of the proposals
(i.e. Options One to Six) would be less safe than the current
layout, especially for cyclists.

Alternative ways of facilitating cyclist movements between
Water End and Water Lane.

Since all of the options outlined above have weaknesses, various
alternative ideas for facilitating cyclist movements between Water
End and Water Lane have been explored and are discussed
below.

Could cyclists stay off-road all the way to the junction?
Convert the Footway to a Shared-Use Path

The existing footway opposite the Green is currently sub-standard
for just pedestrian use, so it could not be considered for shared
use, even if the cobbles were smooth paved and the hedges cut
back. There would also be significant safety concerns over how
cyclists would have to rejoin the carriageway at the ASL.

Form a Cycle Path over the Green

A cycle path over the Green, running between Water lane and the
end of the one-way slip road has also been considered. Putting
aside the legal issues and objections there may be to creating a
surfaced cycle path over the Green, the main problems would be
getting on and off the path at either end. This could possibly be
made to work well for east to west movements (i.e. from Water
Lane), but would be much more of a problem for movements in the
opposite direction.



49.

50.

51.

52.

Page 30

Firstly, cyclists approaching from Clifton Bridge would need to be
able to cross to the opposite side of Water End to access the
Green. This would either require a new signalised crossing facility,
or use of the existing Puffin crossing, which would need to be
converted to a Toucan. The latter would require a significant length
of off-road cycle path to be created, and there would still be
difficulties in crossing the end of the slip road. However, the
biggest problem lies in getting cyclists back on to the road at the
Water Lane junction. There would be a need to introduce a
separate phase into the signals to enable cyclists to exit the Green
safely, which would have a significant impact on the efficiency of
the whole junction. Conditions are already critical in the peak
periods and this additional demand would lead to increased delays
and queue lengths for motorists. It would also be a very expensive
solution to implement.

Could alternative routes be provided to avoid the need for
cyclists on Water End to go through the Clifton Green
signals?

For left turn movements the possibility of using an existing back
alley, which runs to the side of the Almshouses and then along the
rear of the houses opposite the Green, has been investigated
previously. However, this was considered impractical and
unattractive for cyclists to use, due to its very restricted width and
personal security concerns.

For right turns, there is already the option of using Westminster
Road and The Avenue as an alternative for some destinations. We
have also previously looked at the feasibility of creating a contra-
flow cycle facility along the slip road to allow cyclists to access the
existing Pelican crossing on Clifton (which would need to be
converted to a Toucan). This was quickly dismissed because such
a contra-flow facility would require removal of all the existing on-
street parking along the slip road (even loading/unloading would
need to be banned), which is likely to be strongly resisted by local
residents and businesses. There would also be problems in getting
cyclists across Water End to join the facility, and at the other end
to safely get over the Compton Street junction and to access the
crossing facility on Clifton.

For straight ahead movements (the major movement, and key to
the continuity of the Orbital Cycle Route) the only alternatives
would be either turn left or right using one of the options discussed
above, and then turn back towards the signalised junction to



53.

o4.

55.

Page 31

access Water Lane. The “left turn first” option would of course also
require a right turn to be made out onto Shipton Road at the end of
the back alley, which would be extremely difficult to do without a
separate signalised facility. The “right turn first” option would
involve turning left on to Clifton at the end of the contra-flow cycle
facility and then moving into the right hand traffic lane at the
signals. The only alternative to this would be to use the Pelican (or
Toucan) to cross Clifton and then cycle along Dead Man’s Alley,
which provides a link through to Kingsway North. However, this
alley is very narrow in places and is therefore considered
unsuitable for carrying any significant levels of cycling activity.
Personal security issues would also make it unsuitable to be part
of the OCR.

Could the operation of the signals be altered to achieve
improvements for road users?

As part of this study, full traffic, pedestrian and cycle surveys were
undertaken (July 2011 7:00 hrs to 19:00 hrs) on a Thursday,
Saturday and Sunday. Surveys were made at Clifton Green,
Westminster Road, Salisbury Road and A59 / Boroughbridge
Road. The survey results were used in the preparation of this
report, but they will also allow an area-wide review of the signal
timings to be made. Indications are that there is a significant
potential for improvements to general vehicle flow to be achievable
particularly on a Saturday mid-morning and during the weekday
morning peaks. An element of queue relocation already occurs
with the Salisbury Road traffic signals, effectively gating traffic onto
the Clifton Green lights. This gating could be utilised to control the
queue length on Water End. If the through-put at Salisbury Road
heading east were matched to that at Water End, then the queue
at Clifton Green could be minimised by being relocated to the
Salisbury Road signals. The overall delay would remain the same,
but the progress through the lights at Clifton Green would be far
quicker — reducing the benefit of using Westminster Road. The
constraint would be the amount of stacking space before the
queue blocked back onto Boroughbridge Road.

Changing the pedestrian crossing over Water Lane to a Puffin
arrangement would bring a small but useful benefit to traffic flows
and pedestrian amenity (but at a cost of approximately £10 to 15k).

These measures could be implemented without the re-instatement
of a filter signal, but they would not by themselves compensate for



56.

S7.

58.

Page 32

the loss of the filter. The area wide review of signal timings could
be undertaken with all options.

Could advance signals be provided prior to the junction, in
order to manage traffic flows, whilst at the same time
providing benefits for cyclists in being able to reach the ASL
at the junction more easily?

Pre-signallising the Water End approach would involve installing a
set of traffic signals set back from the main junction to hold traffic
back, but allow cyclists to move forward towards the main stop
line. It is the phasing of these lights with the main signals that
gives the advantage to cyclists without overly impeding motorists.
However, the difficulty with Water End is that in order to feed the
restored filter with sufficient traffic to make it effective requires that
the pre-signals open up a long time - up to 40 seconds - in
advance of the main signals (this is based on a flow rate of each
vehicle taking 2 seconds to pass a stop line, and with 20 vehicles
required to fill up the reservoir, this equates to 40 seconds).
Anything less reduces the benefit of reinstating the left turn filter
lane and increases the danger for cyclists, because they would be
running together with free moving traffic, which could at the same
time be changing lanes.

The variability of the split of traffic between the left and right turn
lanes also means that optimising the run-in at the start of the green
signal in order to make best use of the filter and the run-out at the
end of the green phase, so as to keep the reservoir traffic free (but
not waste green time), would be difficult. The signal arrangement is
generally more complex and would require signal equipment to be
installed at a sensitive location, including on Clifton Green.
Average queue lengths would increase for traffic under these
circumstances. This type of arrangement can have benefits, but it
is dependant upon site specifics. This arrangement is currently
being considered for implementation on Holgate Road, but due to
specific layout constraints, it is not deemed to be a feasible option
for Water End due to the excessive amount of time that would be
required, and the resultant high levels of queuing traffic as a
consequence.

Next Steps

A decision is needed on the approach to be adopted so that more
detailed design can be undertaken, and the preferred option(s) can



59.

60.

Page 33

be formally submitted for internal and external consultation,
including the emergency services, cycle user groups and relevant
Members. Feedback would be reported to a future meeting with a
view to a final decision being made.

Options

The options for the Cabinet Member to consider in relation to the
reinstatement of a left turn traffic lane are summarised below:
Option 1 — retaining both the cycle track build-out and the splitter
island, as shown in Annex D;

Option 2 — retaining the cycle track build-out, but removing the
splitter island, as shown in Annex E;

Option 3 — removing the cycle track build-out, but retaining the
splitter island, as shown in Annex F;

Option 4 — removing both the cycle track build-out and the splitter
island, as shown in Annex G;

Option 5 — introducing a central cycle feeder lane between two
traffic lanes, as shown in Annex H, retaining the splitter island;

Option 6 — introducing a central cycle feeder lane between two
traffic lanes, as shown in Annex C, with the splitter island
removed;

Option 7 — retaining the existing layout, as shown in Annex B.
Additional Measures

There are also some additional measures for the Cabinet Member
to consider, as follows:

Measure A — Undertake an area-wide review of signal timings for
weekdays and weekends for all options. This could include an
element of queue relocation for all options short of the full filter
lane restoration.

Measure B — Conversion of the pedestrian crossing over Water
End to a Puffin style crossing facility.



61.

62.

63.

Page 34

Analysis

The current layout on the Water End approach to the Clifton Green
junction works well for cyclists, and since the scheme was
introduced, the number of people cycling along this route has
increased significantly. Therefore, from a sustainable transport
viewpoint, the current layout has been successful. In terms of road
safety, the layout on the Water End approach is also considered to
be working satisfactorily, since there has only been one relevant
injury accident since the scheme was completed in April 20009.
This involved a collision between a cyclist and a car just beyond
the ASL on the Water Lane approach, and resulted in a slight
injury to the cyclist. However, it should be noted that in the three
years prior to the scheme being implemented there were no
recorded injury accidents on this arm of the junction, and the
doubling of cycling numbers inevitably increases the chances of an
accident involving a cyclist occurring.

In comparing the six options presented above for reinstating a left
turn traffic lane, several key issues need to be considered and
balanced against each other:

e Benefits to traffic flow — all the options will improve traffic
flow, but to varying degrees.

e Negatives for cycling — the four options which do not retain
an on-road cycle lane will make it much more difficult for
cyclists to make progress through the Clifton Green junction
in busy traffic conditions, and will make the whole cycle
route less attractive to use.

e Road safety — all the options have potential safety issues.

e Costs — the options vary in cost, but all should be affordable
within the available budget allocation.

e Public support — the various options will all be viewed
differently by various road users, local residents, and other
interested parties.

Of these issues, Officers are most concerned about the road
safety implications of changing the existing layout. The safety
audit process has highlighted many potential problems and
reaches the conclusion that all the options would be less safe



64.

65.

66.

Page 35

overall than the existing layout. Officers consider that these safety
matters cannot be fully resolved by amendments to the basic
designs, and therefore on safety grounds retaining the existing
layout in accordance with Option 7 is preferable.

Should the Cabinet Member be minded to pursue the
reinstatement of a left turn traffic lane, Officers consider that
Option One and Options Five or Six present the best compromise
solutions. Option One is the favoured option of the four which do
not retain a cycle lane, because this would still provide cyclists with
protection from traffic at the pinch point, whilst providing a
significant benefit to traffic flow through the junction from Water
End. In addition, the retention of the splitter island reduces the
risks to cyclists waiting in the ASL area, and pedestrians crossing
at this location. Options Five and Six have the big advantage of
maintaining continuity of the cycle route by having an on-road
cycle lane. However, this would come at the expense of some
additional safety concerns and a lower traffic capacity gain.

In considering Options Five and Six, it is worth noting that there
are several existing examples in York of traffic signal junction
layouts which incorporate a central cycle ‘feeder’ lane between two
traffic lanes. The two that most closely resemble the proposed
layout at Water End are on Clarence Street at its junction with
Wigginton Road, and on Station Road at its junction with Station
Rise. The Clarence Street example has similar traffic lane widths
to those achievable at Water End, whereas the Station Road
layout has significantly wider traffic lanes. Both of these sites have
a good safety record, with no related injury accidents recorded
over the last three years.

However, a crucial distinction between the two examples
discussed above in comparison with the layouts shown in
Annexes C and H, is that on Water End cyclists would be rejoining
the carriageway from an off-road path shortly before reaching the
point at which traffic would be able to move across the cycle lane
to use the left turn lane. In both the Clarence Street and Station
Road examples discussed above, cyclists are fully on road prior to
the start of the left turn lane, which means that motorists are fully
aware of the presence of on-road cyclists. Therefore, there is a
concern that on Water End drivers may be less attentive to the
presence of on-road cyclists as they seek to enter the left turn
traffic lane, despite a short length of on-road cycle lane being



67.

68.

69.

70.

Page 36

provided prior to the left turn lane commencing, in order to raise
awareness of cyclists rejoining the carriageway.

There is an existing example where cyclists leave an off-road path
before joining a central cycle feeder lane. This is at the junction of
Water End and Boroughbridge Road. However, it does not closely
resemble the proposed layouts shown in Annexes C and H for two
important reasons. Firstly, the on-road cycle lane leading from the
off-road path extends for a much greater distance than can be
accommodated at Clifton Green. In addition, the on-road cycle
lane does not form a continuous lead into a central cycle feeder
lane - there is a long gap between the two, where cyclists are
expected to move over when they can. The site has a good safety
record, with no related injury accidents recorded over the last three
years.

On the additional measures, both A and B offer the potential for
general improvements at the junction, regardless of whether a left
turn traffic lane is restored on Water End. It is therefore
recommended that both are taken forward for more detailed
assessment, with a view to Officers developing more detailed
proposals for the Cabinet Member to consider.

Corporate Priorities

The proposed reinstatement of the left turn traffic lane would be a
localised amendment to the overall Water End Cycle Scheme, and
is thought unlikely to have a significant impact in relation to the
council’s Corporate Priorities. However, there is a significant risk
that cyclists would find the new layout more intimidating, and some
may choose to switch to alternative motorised forms of travel.
There is also a risk of more accidents occurring. Therefore, the
proposal does have some potential to impact negatively on the
council’s corporate aims relating to sustainability, safety, and
health.

Implications

Financial/lProgramme — The Transport Capital Programme for
2011/12 currently includes a provisional budget of £40K for the
possible reinstatement of the left-turn lane. Therefore, all options
should be affordable, as long as there is no damage to the water
main.



71.
72.

73.

74.

75.
76.

77.

78.

Page 37

Human Resources — None.

Equalities — Pedestrian safety may be affected on that part of the
footway on Water End, directly opposite The Green, if the existing
layout were to be amended.

Legal — The council would need to go through legal proceedings if
any alterations to Clifton Green (a registered Village Green) were
proposed, or if any compulsory purchase of land adjacent to Clifton
Green were pursued.

Crime and Disorder — Any cyclists that resort to riding on the
footway as a result of the existing layout being amended would be
committing an offence.

Information Technology — None.
Property — None.

Risk Management

Risk Category Impact Likelihood Score
Organisation/Reputation | Medium (3) | Probable (4) | 3x4=12
Physical High (4) Possible (3) | 4X3=12

In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, the
main risks in reinstating the left-hand lane that have been identified
in this report are:

. The potential damage to the Council’s image and reputation
if scheme proposals are not brought forward, especially in
view of previous press coverage concerning traffic
congestion on Water End and rat-running traffic using
Westminster Road / The Avenue. Conversely, many people
may also be unhappy if the current scheme is altered.

. The physical risk of increased casualties linked to the
proposed road layout changes.

Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk scores have
been assessed at less than 16, which means that at this point the
risks need only to be monitored, as they do not provide a real
threat to the achievement of the objectives of this report.



Page 38

Contact Details:

Authors Chief Officer Responsible for the report
Mike Durkin Richard Wood
Project Manager (Transport & Assistant Director for Strategic Planning &
Safety) Transport
Tel No: (01904) 553459

12 September 2011
Jon Pickles iep:;t od y |Date oprember
Senior Engineer (Transport & pprov
Safety)

Tel No: (01904) 553462

Simon Parrett

Principal Transport Planner
Modeller

Tel No: (01904) 551631

Specialist Implications Officer(s)
There are no specialist officer implications.

Wards Affected: Clifton All

For further information please contact the authors of the report.

Background Papers:

“‘Called-In_ltem: Water End/Clifton Green Review — Reinstatement of
Left-turn Traffic Lane and Chicane Trial”, a report to the meeting of the
council’'s Executive (Calling-In) on 21 December 2010.

“‘Water End/Clifton Green Review — Reinstatement of Left-turn Traffic
Lane and Chicane Trial”, a report to the Decision Session — Executive
Member for City Strategy on 7™ December 2010.

“Cover Report — Water End Councillor Call for Action”, a report to the
meeting of the council’s Executive on 6 July 2010.

“Cover Report — Water End Final Report”, a report to the Economic &
City Development Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 17 May 2010.

“Water End — Proposed Improvements for Cyclists”, a report to the
Executive Members for City Strategy and Advisory Panel on 20 October
2008.



Page 39

Annexes:

Annex A Plan showing “Clifton Green Junction, Water End — Original
Layout (Pre Cycle Scheme)”.

Annex B Plan showing “Clifton Green Junction, Water End — As
Existing (Post Cycle Scheme)”.

Annex C Plan showing “Clifton Green Junction, Water End -
Reinstatement of Left Turn Lane With a Central Cycle
Feeder Lane, Removing the Splitter Island”.

Annex D Plan showing “Clifton Green Junction, Water End -
Reinstatement of Left Turn Lane Retaining Cycle Track
Build-out and Splitter Island”.

Annex E  Plan Showing “Cliffton Green Junction, Water End -
Reinstatement of Left Turn Lane Retaining Cycle Track
Build-out, But Not Retaining Splitter Island”.

Annex F  Plan showing “Clifton Green Junction, Water End -
Reinstatement of Left Turn Lane Removing Cycle Track
Build-out, But Retaining Splitter Island”.

Annex G Plan showing “Clifton Green Junction, Water End -
Reinstatement of Left Turn Lane Removing Cycle Track
Build-out and Splitter Island”.

Annex H Plan showing “Clifton Green Junction, Water End -
Reinstatement of Left Turn Lane With a Central Cycle
Feeder Lane, Retaining the Splitter Island”.

Photographs:

Photo 1 & Photo 2



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41

1102 3snbny 3Lva
¥/92€60v0/3A3/S1 ol o ——
e mre | (3WAUDS 31047 audd 3NoA0vT youiBluf] UG W] pawoery | MUOA, fowinueoos | o

STEERRIEREE | PUT W33 0M ‘UOIRDUNE U33UD UOYYN] g STE VT I
\ | NOILVSITILN 3NV FOVHIAY |

T T o e
..\.mmﬂm_ww Ery) B m@:@ﬂmﬁ@ﬁ

plefs
sa1ds bussixg
05y _
g 00y
.
e - 57 51y
'l
160 5914407 bursixg

vV X3NNV



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



1102 3snbny 3Lva
4/92€60¥0/3A0/S1L o mel o
s o o e SO SR (awayds 224> 3sody Bupsix3y sy uping W[ paxoayy v—.m_:o.u> Ecs_acauu_.ﬁﬁbﬁ
AT P R il U3 J4330M ‘UOIEDUNC U3aUg U0 4N] <Iva R - 2p059 W umiq

Page 43

g X3INNV

plefs
Jo1|ds bursig

/G0 53407 bursixg

ol
apko bureig

pu?
ey bugsieg




Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX C

Busting ramp
end

Certral cycle
feeder lane

Tr a0

Removal of exsting
cobbles

Remstated left

tun lane Advarce

stop I

Straigft shead
§ night urn lane

g Brsting spltter 1sland
§/\ o
| AVERAGE LANE UTILISATION |
Drav—W Rongs REV AMENDMENTS DATE | Clifton Green Junction, Water End BRI ST R
< York Consultancy <n.°:’a-x Checked M Durkin ”ﬁi«lgfif.g!!o
‘ covnet | SCALE NTS Reinstatement of left turn lane with a TS/CYC/0409326/C
DATE August 2011 central cycle feeder lane




Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



puo|S| 4a33dS PUD 1NO—pPING >D0uy 3)2AD 1102 3snbny ava
1/9286070/3A3/SL| Bujuroyau auv) UUNg 133) 30 1UBWSLVLSUISY SN TVOS | e E——
1907 0001 "oN souser) 59 louned iy e LD upiang W pasosyn g.n‘.m> ADUDJNSUOD YIOA >
TREERERRRSE PU3 4e3oM "UOIROUNE US3YD UOIINT |3iva SININANINY | I B

| NOLLYSITILN 3NV FOVHIAY |

ECTE
EC0 LTI TET EXTT B0 ) BT

pueg|
10111ds bungixg

Page 47

(uoounl wouy WG roidde) pua

/I aue] 3ok 10 pug dues burging

05y
colf [= e T -
u.m ==JN(| ==

[oueT Jopaa 994D [eua)d Y|

d X3NNV



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



o
NOLNJISOUd OL GV AVA ONY LHORAJOD NAOKD
300

U3 J33VM ‘UolRDUNC USSUY UO33NT Fiva SININANIAY A38

puDIS! 4333Nds Buluo3ad 10U 3NG ANO-PING HD0u} 1102 35n6ny Lva
3/92E6070/9AI/5L 21245 BuluP3aU BUD) UUNY 143) JO FUBWALDLSUIDY SIN|  TIVOS | viommes P — -
1907 0001 "oN souser) 59 louned iy e LD uing W pasosyn g.o‘.m> ADUDJNSUOD YIOA >
3pVay W umbig

Page 49

QOES

puels! 1a111ds

HIEMETET

| NOILLVSITILN 3NV FOVHIAY|

m@m@m@tm@_m@m@m@ﬂ m@@u

— - 00¢
f.” M /,ON,m e -« oom - o
- e = (¢ = oLy

(uorjoun wou} wyG ¥0idde)

que] 20k Jo pu]

05°¢
—10 =
= ( o

[aue Japaad 8|9A] |enua) ynm|

00t
00°¢

pua

dues bursicg

_

3 X3NNV



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



puois| ya1inds BuULaU 1NG ANO—PING XDDu] 1102 3snbny aLva
4/92€60¥0/3A20/S1 31240 BUAOWAU ‘BUD) Uuny 133) 4O 3UBWIL0LSUIBY SIN IIv0S onnos P ———.
%.qhwﬂh;%fﬂﬁ upiung W pooayy g.o‘.m> ADUDYNSUOD NIOA >
TR PU3 4a3oM "UOIROUNE US34D UO33NT | 3vg SININANIAY R e
w2
=\2
1
< ¢ ¢
~ e _ . I
9¢ Q¢ - Gl - —
~ 507 — [ —
L 0%
% ____ 2 m 4
’/
e // obian 0y // : &
Z\> el 3010 2101 Remp uiolos e 2plo Sounyel Jadey _
0 54494 paddoi bueva Uiy payIRY 0 1e1G
~—
5 —_—
(]
&
\ [- — 9¢ - ( ot 0¢ -
ZIGETIRS r..m ~ - _
puelsl Jagyds _ F ‘ 'S I | _

5pua due. burgia
palieIsy Yoy ge quio

I 
)

NN
1M

pauela) LG
puelel jatuds

[aue Japaad 8194 |eua) UIMm|

4 X3NNV




Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



PUDIS| Ya33Nds PUD 3NO-PING HI0u3 1102 3snbny|  3Lva
9/9ce60¥0/JA0/S1 310AD BulAOwWaU BUD) UUNE 133) 4O FUSWILVISUIDY SIN ERVAS 1omnoo s wagpo e I
1907 0001 "oN souser) 59 louned iy e LD upanNg W pasosyn g.o‘.m> ADUDJNSUOD YIOA >
e e ‘ 3p03y W
TR e e e v U3 4930/ UCRRoUNr USSW) UORINT —a1va SININANIAV A3d e
w2
2\ I
<~ L¢ il ) —
—_ : —
9¢ Q¢ e —— Gl _
, _ Q¢  —
B . 9 A
Ly _ 0¢
. \
Z\& // i shuew Jade
=\ Y011 2040 210169y fenp uolas yoen 3pko el So0e)
01 544 pacdol burso ey PO 10 116
3 —_—
Lo
()
& Lt 6 SE
i - 0t , |
Co - -~ e — — = 0%
PO g I € - - (¢ —
pUe[S] J2111ds - = I —— I —
% ./za ¢ ** i o& 7'y ~—
B spua due. burgia i
, poueIy Yoy ge quio s|S
. o 91040
- — _ —
N (g7 "
99 UMF 0 e p, —
e Q- ~
/ /
[aue Jopasd 9j9AD [eluad Ui
5 X3NNV




Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



(poulb}a. puD(S| Uo3}l|ds) SuUD| Uopedy 9|9Ad [0J3USD 102 3snby|  3uva
H/92e6070/0A3/51 0 UjiM BUD) UdNy 343] O JUBWI303SUIDY SIN|  3WOS | siomaes o -
%.qrﬂwueﬂ:i%hﬂm uving W|  paspsy) %>H ASUBYSUOD 410 A
R TR D o M8 e PUJ USIOM ‘UOIEDUNC US3UD UOLINT Frvg S - 3P0y W] umoig

| NOLLVSILLN INVT JOVHIAY |

m@gm@@m@m@m@@

paule]
plels! 1271ds burioixg x

Page 55

— + T e— . T
/
09'1]
ou
au) dojs aug| Ly by ey bungivg
o | A o 4 aue| Ly 2l J9p22)
Y peove b 119 PRSI 200 i)

5319909 /

butsixa Jo jeroway

H X3NNV



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



i -
iy :

A e e—

e |

Photo 2




Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION SESSION — CABINET MEMBER FOR CITY STRATEGY

TUESDAY 27 SEPTEMBER 2011

Annex of additional comments received from Members, Parish Councils and residents since the agenda was

published.
Agenda | Report Received from Comments
Item
4 Water End/Clifton Alan Wilkinson | strongly oppose the adoption of any of the options 1-4

Green Junction: Options
for Reinstating a
Separate Left Turn
Traffic Lane on the
Water End Approach

Pages 13 — 58

York resident

which remove a continuous cycle lane on Water End. The
report makes frequent mention of the disadvantages of this
approach, but | feel that the reduction in safety and
convenience for cyclists and pedestrians (by bringing
vehicles closer to the pavement) is difficult to overstate. It
would be appalling if one of these anti-pedestrian and anti-
cyclist options were chosen.

| also strongly oppose options 5 and 6. These options at
first glance appear to present a reasonable compromise of
retaining a cycle lane but adding a filter lane. However, the
compromise is not reasonable because, as mentioned in
the report, the traffic lanes would be so narrow that the
central feeder lane would be very difficult for cyclists to use
safely or effectively. As can be seen at other locations in
York, such an arrangement frequently gets blocked by
queuing traffic. They would also bring traffic much closer to
pedestrians on the pavement.

| commend the officers for their comprehensive report.
However, | feel it needs to be emphasised very strongly that
the "advantages" listed for each option are mainly
advantages compared to the other options. None of the
options actually presents any advantages compared the

6G abed

Xauuy epuaby



existing arrangement except for one: reducing journey times
for motorists. Therefore the executive member should bear
very carefully in mind that the disadvantages for each
option are far greater in number than the advantages when
compared to the status quo. (For example, "retaining the
splitter island" cannot be considered an advantage for
pedestrians except when compared against other options.)

This has the potential to become a real turning point for the
council's transport policy. There is only one benefit to be
had from any of the options 1-6 and that is convenience for
drivers. On the other hand, the disadvantages cover a very
wide spectrum, including cyclist and pedestrian safety,
sustainability of the transport system and providing good
infrastructure for future generations. To ignore the wider
benefits and give more weight to the convenience of one
group than the safety of another would be a hugely
regressive step and would be very difficult to reverse in the
future.

| strongly implore that option 7 be chosen and other ways
found to reduce congestion and/or inappropriate use of
residential streets.

As an aside, one sentence in paragraph 4 causes great
concern: "it has been observed that a small number of
motorists choose to go into the cycle lane and use it as a
left turn traffic lane". As this is clearly not the purpose of the
lane but is entirely legal, why has this issue been given only
cursory consideration? This could be addressed relatively
simply by making the lane mandatory rather than advisory.
Alternatively, the lane could be given some physical
protection. As an obvious abuse of the provided facility, why
is the issue not explored in more detail in the report and
why does it not form part of the options to be determined by

09 abed



the executive member?

| hope you are able to take these views into account and |
look forward to hearing back from you on the issue
mentioned in my last paragraph.

Water End/Clifton
Green Junction: Options
for Reinstating a
Separate Left Turn
Traffic Lane on the
Water End Approach

Pages 13 — 58

Dr Andrew Pringle
Westminster Road
resident

| write to you with reference to decision on the removal of
the left hand filter lane on the Water End Cycle Scheme. |
am unable to attend the meeting, but | wish my apologies to
be noted along with my letter of support for the re-
instatement of the left hand filter lane to be recorded on the
following basis.

1. The evaluation of the Water End Cycle Scheme is unable
to report reliable, valid and robust data (i.e. with statistical
significance through an effective pre-post evaluation
design) that people new to bicycling (were not cycling prior
to the scheme) have adopted the behaviour as a result of
the cycle lane and other social marketing interventions
promoting cycling in the City.

2. The lack of evidence on the effectiveness of the scheme
(above) does not justify the £947,000 investment (including
substantial over-spending) of the public purse.

3. Following the installation of the scheme, there has been
a dramatic increase in through traffic volume in residential
streets which has had an appalling reduction in the quality
of neighbourhood for people in Westminster Road and the
Avenue.

| offer further evidence in the following paragraphs in
support of these points

19 abed



1.0 The Scheme Cannot Report New Cycling
Behaviours (i.e. not cycling before the Water End
Scheme)

1.1. When considering effectiveness, the WE scheme
shows that there was an increase in cycling numbers (2008
v 2009), but these data to not confirm if the cyclists are new
to cycling, i.e., that as a result of installing the WE
infrastructure and the associated social marketing
interventions such as advertising, that non cyclists have
been recruited and are now cycling.

1.2. With those thoughts in mind, there is then
uncertainty that the scheme has been effective at
increasing new cyclists. Indeed, recruiting new cyclists (i.e.
people who were not cycling previously from motorized
modes of transportation) are necessary for reducing
congestion in the City of York. In fact, much has been made
by supporters of the WE scheme that it is a potential
instrument for alleviating congestion in the City, but this can
only occur if new non cyclists are engaged.

1.3.  With those thoughts in mind, there is sufficient doubt
that the Water End scheme has been effective at increasing
new cycling behaviours (people not cycling before).

1.4. Questions remain on the robustness of the
evaluation strategy adopted for the scheme, in spite of such
concerns being shared with Officers previously. To illustrate
a model of evaluation good practice for cycling schemes,
the interventions performed as part of the National Cycling
Demonstration projects are not dissimilar to those types
adopted in the City of York. If we apply the percentages of
increases from the Cycling England demonstration projects

29 abed



to the Water End scheme (pre to post evaluation design),
we see there are very small improvements in new cycling
behaviours, between 1-3% in new cyclists adopting the
behaviour. These best data indicate (any) improvements
in new cycling behaviours (i.e not cycling before) as a result
of the Water End Scheme are likely to be very small, if at
all.

2.0. Cost Effectiveness and Worthwhile Use of the
Public Pursue

2.1. If there is uncertainty surrounding the
effectiveness of the scheme at engaging new (non) cyclists,
there is then uncertainty that the scheme has been an
efficient use of the public purse, or a worthwhile use of
resources. This gives rise to the second notion of impact,
efficiency or cost effectiveness.

2.2. The lack of evidence of new cyclists alongside
the substantial £947,000 investment (including over-
spending) of the public purse neither justify, nor warrant the
investment of public monies, as effectiveness cannot be
demonstrated through the weak evaluation design adopted.
Even projected estimates that use the most valid and
reliable UK data on cycling interventions, only show very
small improvements in new cycling (1-3%). As such, the
investment of £947,000 cannot be justified as a good use of
the public purse, this in spite of the claims by ClIr Galloway
that the scheme was successful. The evidence neither
supports effectiveness nor cost effectiveness.

3.0. Impact on Minor Residential Roads and Local
Neighbourhoods

cg abed



3.1. Following the installation of the Water End
scheme, there has been a dramatic increase in through
traffic volume in residential streets which has had an
appalling reduction in the quality of neighbourhood for
people in Westminster Road and the Avenue. Amount,
type, speed of traffic and conduct of drivers has damaged
our neighbourhood. This has been the legacy of the Water
End Scheme for many households. Further local reports
indicate an increase in pollution levels in the area.

3.2. Moreover, YCC has ignored it's own Highway
Design Guidance (residential roads should not be used to
deal with through traffic from outside the area) and the
principles set out in hierarchy of road users.

3.3. The YCC evaluation of the Water End Schemes
(2010) reports that traffic in the Westminster Road area has
approximately doubled. It can also be expected that an
element of the improved Clifton Green junction
performance is due to traffic diversion along Westminster
Road [Report pt 35, pp.34].

3.4. The increase in through traffic is as a direct result
of the ineffective and inefficient Water End Scheme and as
such the impact on minor residential roads MUST be
considered a problem and not ignored as it has by the
previous administration.

3.5. While, installation of the left hand filter lane at the
Clifton Green lights will not stop through traffic volume on
Westminster Road/Avenue, (this will only be stopped
through point closure) which | continue to request; it
may reduce the congestion and may lead to some
alleviation in the amount of traffic using these roads as a rat

9 abed



run.

Finally, | wish to politely take this opportunity to let you
know that this is a YCC created problem, residents did not
have this problem before the scheme. Further, over the last
three years the City Council have prevaricated on this
issue, many feel in that the past regime hoped that local
strength of feeling will disappear. As evidenced by our
efforts over the last three years, the contempt shown by the
previous administration, along with the ineffective
implementation of the scheme, has acted to galvanise
community feeling on this matter. | feel certain people will
continue to press for an effective resolution to the injurious
matter of excessive through traffic volume created on
Westminster Road/Avenue as a result of the installation of
an ineffective and inefficient Waterend cycling scheme .

| would be most grateful if my views can be given due
consideration.

G9 abed



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 Water End/Clifton Green Junction: Options for Reinstating a Separate Left Turn Traffic Lane on the Water End Approach
	Annex A Final
	Annex B Final
	Annex C Final
	Annex D Final
	Annex E Final
	Annex F Final
	Annex G Final
	Annex H Final
	Photo's 1 & 2 Water End

	Annex of Additional comments received from Members, Parish Councils and residents since the agenda was published.

